
 
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

   
 
MAYOR        CITY CLERK 

             Bryce Ward – Borough Rep     Judy Binkley   
            888-4444          488-8583  

 
  COUNCIL MEMBERS        

Kevin McCarthy- Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem 590-0800 
Avery Thompson    388-5351 
David Skipps     750-5106   
Santa Claus       388-3836 
Thomas McGhee – Mayor Pro Tem  455-0010 
Doug Isaacson  - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 322-3133 

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag 
 
3. Invocation   

  
4. Approval of the Agenda 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes  
 
6. Communications from the Mayor 

• Presentation of 2016 draft audit by Kohler, Schmitt, and Hutchison 
 

7. Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 
8.     Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 
        Clerk  
   
9.     Ongoing Projects Report 
   
10.   Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
Alaska 

 

 
MONDAY, JUNE 19, 2017 

Committee of the whole 6:30 p.m. 
Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



11.  Old Business 
a. Ordinance 17-17, An ordinance of the North Pole City Council amending Title 2, Chapter 

2.36.470, Personnel Code, Pay – F. Professional Development, within the North Pole Fire 
Department.   

 
12.  New Business  

a. Approval of tuition reimbursement for Officer Emily Gibson of the North Pole Police 
Department in the amount of $576. 

b. Authorization to use a Request for Proposals to solicit construction contractors for the water 
system extension project. 

c. Resolution 17-13, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council designating City official’s 
authorization to sign on City of North Pole accounts. 

 
13.  Council Comments 
 
14.  Adjournment 
 
The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired 
individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service.  All such 
requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  
These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business 
hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $10.00 per CD. The 
City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   1 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

 
 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 
      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 
A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, June 5, 2017 in the Council 
Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, June 5, 2017 to order at  
7:00 p.m. 
                 
There were present:     Absent/Excused 
Mr. McCarthy – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem  Excused        
Mr. Isaacson - Deputy Mayor Pro Tem   
Mr. Thompson         
Mr. McGhee - Mayor Pro Tem              
Mr. Claus        
Mr. Skipps            
Mayor Ward –     
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 
Led by Mayor Ward 
 
INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Mr. Isaacson 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
Mr. McGhee moved to approve the agenda of June 5, 2017 
 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
DISCUSSION 
None 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items: 
Old Business: 

a. Ordinance 17-13, an Ordinance to amend codes associated with the City of North Pole’s Storm 
Water Management Ordinances, Chapter 12.24 – Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination; 
Chapter 15.66 – Construction Site Storm Water Runoff; and Chapter 15.74 – Post-Construction 
Storm Water Management. 
 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   2 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

b. Ordinance 17-14, An Ordinance to incur $303,000 debt from a ow-interest Alaska Department 
of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) loan for the purpose of constructing an extension to 
the wastewater treatment plant discharge sewer main in response to an ADEC Notice of 
Violation. 
 

c. Ordinance 17-15, an Ordinance to allow multiple water meters at properties with multiple 
occupancies and to allow a single customer sewer service line at properties with multiple 
occupancies. 
 

d. Ordinance 17-16, an Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend the 2017 Jag/Byrne 
grant to purchase an undercover vehicle for use by North Pole Police Department.   

 
New Business: 

a. Approval of liquor license transfer from First Security Investments, dba Pagoda Chinese 
Restaurant to Steven & Julie Moody, dba Moody Brews BBQ & Catering. 

 
b. Fairbanks North Star Borough and City of North Pole Emergency Medical 

Services/Ambulance contract renewal and amendment #2. 
 

c. Approval of the North Pole City Council to write-off uncollectable utility debts totaling 
$7,860.19. 
 

e.    Resolution 17-12, a Resolution of the City of North Pole in support of submitting a kickstarter 
       competitive award to the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation to install energy efficiency 
       technologies in City Hall. 

 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson  
 
Discussion 
None 
 
On the amendment 
 
PASSED 
Yes:  6– McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 
No:  0 
Absent:  1 -  McCarthy 
 
On the Agenda as amended 
 
 
Discussion 
None  
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   3 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

PASSED 
Yes:  6– McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 
No:  0 
Absent:  1 -  McCarthy 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr.  McGhee moved to approve the Minutes of May 15, 2017  
 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
Discussion 
None  
 
PASSED 
Yes:  6– McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 
No:  0 
Absent:  1 -  McCarthy 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
 

• Arcadis/Agnew:: Beck Growth Management Plan 
John Dunham and Shelly Wade introduced themselves to the council 
Purpose of growth management process – understand given new resident population (~3500, 1300 
new personal). What weaknesses does this cause in infrastructure and what opportunities are there.  
What is the impact and how are needs met or not met. 
 

• Proclamations 

Kimberly Williams the May student of the month was recognized by Mayor Ward 

The Violations Committee will be meeting before the first meeting of every month in the 
Council Chambers starting at 530pm.  The public is welcome to attend; we are hoping to have 
things wrapped up by August.      

4th of July Meetings are scheduled for the following dates until the event:, , June 12th, June 26th. 
All meetings will be at City Hall at 6pm and go till 7pm. The public is welcome to attend. We 
are considering the High School as a possible festival location.   We have chosen “My Town” as 
the theme this year, based on Montgomery Gentry’s song .  



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   4 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

Tomorrow is the follow up housing summit from 2-5 pm at the Pipeline Training Center, if you 
are interested in taking advantage of the opportunities for residential construction in the North 
Pole areas I would encourage you to attend.   

It is with heavy hearts that we remember Buzz Otis this weekend at North Pole Worship Center 
from 4-6pm. My Heart and prayers go out to his family as they deal with this tragic loss.   

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR  
None 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 
 
Fire Dept., Chief Coon 

Chief Coon out of town 

May 20th was the open house, same day as Cruising with Santa and had a great turnout so 
next year the event will coincide again. 

6 staff members have been going through apparatus training school and they all did well and 
passed the hands on practical 

Currently doing the annual pump testing 

 
Police Dept., Chief Dutra 

• Articles on large drug bust from Tok.  This involved SDEU.  $30k seized along with guns 
and drugs. 

• Pursuits through City.  Had one on St. Nicholas at 80 mph.  Had second just outside city. 
• Ofc. Phil McBroom was awarded Officer of the Year by APOA – Prestigious Award – 

Grats.  Also NPPD Officer of the year. 
• Jeromey Lindhag was Employee of the Year for NPPD 
• Parade Security will be heightened for July 4th parade. 
• Door wiring is progressing. 
• We have moved ahead with Gundersen Painting to paint our building. 
• Electric Hot water heater repaired cost $2300 
• Cars should be in Anchorage next week or so. 
• I leave for Sitka for Officer Tibbetts graduation. 
• Hosting IPCC on June 30.  Collaboration event. 
• Medals and Decoration meeting occurring tomorrow.  First of many. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   5 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

• Memorial Park flag is being drawn up.  Working on flag for park. 
• Worked Crusin with Santa gave away a lot of items to kids and sold a lot of tickets. 
• Also Mike Welch attended the Vernon Nash car show sold tickets. 
• Need help selling tickets.  Will distribute when meeting is done. 

 
 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty 
• Thanked council for reaching out to KSH on their request fill out the form regarding if they 

suspected any fraud.   
• They are wrapping up the audit this week. 
• Received new a new credit card processor and saved it has saved the City $1000 so far 

fees. 
 
 
Director of City Services, Bill Butler 
Building Department 

• One new building permit issued-shop building. 
• Four new residential permit applications submitted: Tri-plex, two 4-plexs and single 

family home. One institutional permit application for plumbing work at Middle School. 
 

Public Works 
• Resolution before Council for a $10,000 grant to install LED lighting in City Hall and to 

put timers on the head-bolt heater plug-ins. 
• Flowers planted in roundabouts and planters. 
• Second reading of an ordinance updating Storm Water Management ordinances 
• Community Development Block Grant for Santa’s Senior Center Remodel Project 

formally authorized June 1, 2017. 
 Start of the project delayed waiting for US Army Corps of Engineer determination 

that the Senior Center was not a wetland.  
 

Utility Department 
• Sulfolane lawsuit settlement agreement. 
 ADEC approved the use of HDPE pipes in water system extension. 
 Design phase for water system extension has achieved 65% level 

• Second reading for ADEC loan offer for $303,000 (part of the approved $2 million 
ACWF loan) for the sewer outfall project is before the Council this evening. 

• Second reading of ordinance to clarify Utility code related multi-metering at properties 
with multiple living units is before the Council this evening. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   6 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

• Recommendation to write-off uncollectable Utility debt before Council. 
 

Natural Gas Utility Board 
• There have been no IGU meetings since the last City Council meeting 
•  

 
Borough Representative 

• Odinance 2017-20, FNSB budget was passed on May 18th.  The Borough is up against the 
Tax Cap.  

• The Next regular Assembly meeting will be June 8th.   
 
 
City Clerk’s Office, Kathy Weber 

• The City Council appointed a new City Clerk, Judy Binkley.  Ms. Binkley will take office 
on Wednesday, June 14th.  Mrs. Weber will be in and out of the office until her official 
retirement on Friday, June 30th. 

 
ONGOING PROJECTS 

• None 
 
 
CITIZENS COMMENTS – (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Consented Agenda 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORDINANCE 17-17, AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING 
TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36.470, PERSONNEL CODE, PAY – F. PROFESSIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT, WITHIN THE NORTH POLE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Deputy Chief Heineken gave clarification on Ordinance 17-17.  He stated that it was a housekeeping 
ordinance.  
 
 
Public comment 
None 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   7 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

Mr. Isaacson moved to introduce an advance Ordinance 17-17, an Ordinance of the North Pole City 
Council amending Title 2, Chapter 2.36.470, Personnel Code, Pay – F. Professional Development, 
within the North Pole Fire Department.   
 
Seconded by Mr. McGhee 
 
Discussion 
Mr. Isaacson  
 
PASSED 
Yes:  6– McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 
No:  0 
Absent:  1 -  McCarthy 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a. Modification of the existing contingent fee agreement with CSG, Inc. 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to Adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the modification of the 
existing contingent fee agreement with CSG, Inc. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
PASSED Unanimously – Council went into Executive Session at 8:03 p.m. 
 
Mayor Ward brought the meeting back to order at 8:54. 
 
Mr. McGhee move to authorize Mayor Ward to sign the modified contingent fee agreement 
with CSG, Inc. 
 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
PASSED 
Yes:  6– McGhee, Isaacson, Skipps, Claus, Thompson, Ward 
No:  0 
Absent:  1 -  McCarthy 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
None 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:56 p.m. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
June 5, 2017 

7:00 p.m. 
 
 

   8 
Minutes 
June 5, 2017 
 
 

 
Seconded by Mr. Isaacson 
 
The regular meeting of Monday, June 5, 2017 adjourned at 8:57 p.m.  
 
These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council 
on Monday, June 19, 2017.  
   
       ____________________________________ 
        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
___________________________________ 
Judy Binkley 
North Pole City Clerk      



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



DRAFT 6-14-17



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: June 5, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  June 19, 2017 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 17-17 Page 1 
 

        
 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

 

ORDINANCE 17-17 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING  

TITLE 2, CHAPTER 2.36.470, PERSONNEL CODE, PAY – F. PROFESSIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT, WITHIN THE NORTH POLE FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing 

requirement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to 

the requirements of the City and to clarify questionable areas. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North 

Pole: 

 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be 

codified. 

 Section 2.  Amend Title 2, Chapter 36 Personnel Code, Section .470 Pay, as 

follows, [new text in italicized red font; deleted text in strikethrough font: 

 

 

2.36.470 Pay F. 

 Professional Development Step Salary Increases. Employees may earn horizontal step 

increases for professional development as follows: 

Firefighter Personnel:   

Meets requirements for rank advancement 2 Steps 

(Engineer, Lieutenant, Captain, Deputy Fire Chief)   

Firefighter II/EMT III 2 Steps 

Fire Apparatus Driver/Operator 2 Steps 

Fire Officer I 2 Steps 

Firefighter II/MICP 2 Steps 

 

 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: June 5, 2017 

Possible Adoption:  June 19, 2017 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 17-17 Page 2 
 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the 

first City business day following its adoption. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City  

Council this 19th day of June, 2017. 

  

______________________________ 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

PASSED 

Yes:  

No:  

Absent:  

 













Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: June 13, 2017 

Subject: Request to use a Request for Proposal approach to solicit construction contractors for 

the water system extension project 

Recommendation: 

 

Approve the use of a Request for Proposals to solicit construction contractors for the water system 

extension project funded by the sulfolane settlement agreement. 

 

Background 

 

The City has a history of using Invitations to Bid (ITB) to solicit construction contractors and 

Requests to Bid (RFP) to solicit professional services—things like an engineer or auditor. The 

Municipal Code requires the City Council authorize the use of a RFP versus an ITB (see attached 

relevant sections of Municipal Code). The difference between an ITB versus a RFP to select a 

contractor is an ITB bases selection based upon the lowest cost responsive bidder. Selection of a 

contractor using a RFP is based upon a variety relevant factors that include price.  

 

A provision of the sulfolane settlement agreement has the City being the entity responsible for 

managing the construction of the water system extension in partnership with the two other parties to 

the agreement—Flint Hills Resources (FHR) and the State of Alaska (SOA). The construction will be 

funded by FHR and SOA with no financial contribution by the City. To expedite the engineering and 

design of the water system and to generate the bidding documents, FHR stepped up and provided the 

funding to hire the engineering firm Stantec before all the requirements of the settlement agreement 

are finalized; for example, the SOA issuing the City a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

(CPCN) to own and operate the water system which has yet to be issued.  

 

The water system extension project is possibly the largest project to ever be managed by the City. The 

settlement agreement is capped at $100 million. Construction is estimated to cost in the range of $90 

million. The project will add approximately 40 miles of water mains to the City’s utility and add 

improvements to the water treatment plant. Construction is expected to span two construction seasons 

starting it 2018 and ending in 2019. Due to the size and complexity of the project, it is critical that the 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-8593 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill.butler@northpolealaska.org 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 



best construction contractor versus the cheapest contractor be hired to construct the water system 

extension.  

 

The initial criteria the Utility proposes to include in the RFP process for soliciting a construction 

contractor include the following: 

 Contractor qualifications 

 Past performance 

 Project approach 

 Safety record 

 Claims history 

 References 

 Bonding 

 Cost  

 

The RFP will weigh each of the factors as a basis for selecting a construction contractor. The team 

reviewing the proposals will include representatives from each of the parties to the settlement—FHR, 

SOA and City. Based upon the review and assessment of the proposals, the committee will make a 

recommendation to the City Council of the preferred contractor. 

 

Attached is the preliminary draft of the RFP that the City would use to solicit construction contractors 

for the water system extension project.  

  



4.16.040 Competitive sealed bidding. 

A.    Competitive Sealed Bidding. 

1.    All items purchased by the City in excess of $50,000 (fifty thousand dollars) shall be 

awarded by competitive sealed bidding. 

2.    An invitation for bids shall be issued and shall include specifications, and all 

contractual terms and conditions applicable to the procurement. 

3.    Adequate public notice of the invitation for bids shall be given a reasonable time prior 

to the date set forth therein for the opening of bids which shall provide for a minimum of at 

least fifteen calendar days. Such notice may include publication in a newspaper of general 

circulation a reasonable time prior to bid opening. The public notice shall state the date and 

time of the bid opening. 

4.    Bids shall be opened publicly in the presence of one or more witnesses at the time and 

place designated in the invitation for bids. The amount of each bid together with the name 

of each bidder shall be recorded; the record and each bid shall be opened to public 

inspection. 

5.    All bid awards shall be made by the City Council. Written notice shall be sent to the 

selected bidder who meets the criteria and requirements as outlined in the invitation for 

bids. 

6.    Correction or withdrawal of inadvertently erroneous bids before or after bid opening, 

or cancellation of awards or contracts based on such bid mistakes, may be permitted where 

appropriate. Mistakes discovered before bid opening may be modified or withdrawn by 

written or telegraphic notice received in the office designated in the invitation for bids prior 

to the time set for bid opening. After bid opening, corrections in bids shall be permitted 

only to the extent that the bidder can show by clear and convincing evidence that mistake 

was made, the nature of the mistake and the bid price actually intended. However, 

downward correction of a bid, which would displace the apparent low bidder, shall only be 

permitted if the error made and the intended bid price can be determined solely from the 

bid documents. Upward correction of a bid, established from the bid documents or other 

evidence, shall be permitted only if the corrected bid is not within two percent of the next 

low responsive bid. All decision to permit the correction or withdrawal of bids, or to cancel 

awards of contracts based on bid mistakes, shall be supported by a written determination 

made by the City. 



7.    The contract shall be awarded with responsible promptness by written notice to the 

lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid meets the requirement and criteria set 

forth in the invitation for bids. In the event all bids for a construction project exceed 

available funds and the low responsive and responsible bid does not exceed such funds by 

more than five percent, the City is authorized, when time or economic considerations 

preclude resolicitation or work of a reduced scope, to negotiate an adjustment of the bid 

price with the low responsive and responsible bidder. 

B.    Competitive Sealed Proposals. 

1.    When the City Council determines that the use of competitive sealed bidding is either 

not practicable or not advantageous to the City, a contract may be entered into by use of the 

competitive sealed proposals method. 

2.    Proposals shall be solicited through a request for proposals. 

3.    Adequate public notice of the request for proposals shall be given including 

publication in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen days prior to the deadline 

for proposals. 

4.    No proposals shall be handled so as to permit disclosure of the identity of any offeror 

or the contents of any proposal to competing offers during the process of negotiation. The 

proposals shall be open for public inspection only after contract award by the City Council. 

5.    The request for proposals shall state the relative importance of price and other 

evaluation factors. 

6.    Award shall be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal is determined in 

writing to be the most advantageous to the City taking into consideration price and the 

evaluation factors set forth in the request for proposals. No other factors or criteria shall be 

used in the evaluation. The contract file shall contain the basis on which the award is made. 

 



 

 

Draft Request Proposal to Select a Construction Contractor for the 

Water System Extension Project 
 

A. - Example of the Proposal Criteria 

 

The following presents a draft of considered criteria to be weighted and used for scoping 

proposals received from a Contractor responding to a Request for Proposal for the 

construction procurement process.   

 

1. Contractor Firm Qualifications  

 

a. Describe the firm’s ownership, history, and experience of the firm. How long has the firm 

been in business? How long has the firm been established in Alaska? Where the firm’s 

main office is located and are there any ancillary offices? 

 

b. Describe the firm’s overall capacity and resources to perform the work within the 

timeframe identified. Identify any distinct and substantive qualifications for undertaking 

the proposed contract that sets your firm apart from others? 

 

2. Past Performance/Relevant Project Experience 

 

a. Demonstrate that the firm has the relevant experience to perform the services required 

of this project. 

b. Describe up to (X number) similar and relevant large industrial and/or public projects 

that have been completed in the last 10 years. 

 Include any projects that were performed in extreme weather and in arctic conditions 
similar to the interior of Alaska or on the North Slope. 

 Provide a physical description, project dates, project team members involved, and 
total contract value. 

 Discuss the similarities and relevance of the listed projects. 

 Include an Owner and Designer reference for each project including contact name(s), 

and current telephone number(s) and/or email addresses. 

c. Provide a record of the firm’s schedule/budget performance over the past five years. 

Highlight the projects that have been completed in Alaska and of similar order of 

magnitude as this project. 

 

3. Project Approach/Management Plan 

 

a. Provide a work plan demonstrating your technical approach to this project.  

 Include how staffing will be conducted. 

 Include a list of subcontractors and estimated percentage or the work they will perform 

and what their specialty is if any.  



 

 

 How much of the work is anticipated to be self-performed? 

 Planned use of local labor and/or labor challenges if any? 

 Proposed staging areas and/or equipment and materials storage. 

b. How will communications be handled with the Owner and/or Owner’s representative, 

and Design Project Manager? Provide your companies approach and program for quality 

control. 

 

c. Discuss what you see to be the primary challenges of this project and your approach to 

meeting those challenges. 

 

d. Describe the firm’s ability to: 

 Minimize change orders;  

 Assess and minimize risks;  

 Mitigate cost impacts associated with the distance between the project location and 

major suppliers and/or metropolitan areas of the state. 

 

e. Provide an organizational chart indicating roles and lines of authority. 

 

f. Specific needs or expectations from the Owner. 

 

4. Safety Record 

a. Briefly describe your firm’s philosophy and approach to safety. 

b. Provide your current Workman’s Compensation Insurance Multiplier which will be 

scored accordingly: 

[The intent is provide a table of insurance multiplier scores that are point 

related, the higher the multiplier the less points allowed] 

 

5. Claims History  

a. Claims and Lawsuits – If the answer to any of the questions below is yes, please attach 

details. 

 

 Has the firm failed to complete any work awarded to it in the last 10 years? 

 
 Are there any judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings, or suits pending or 

outstanding against your organization or its officers? 

 

 Has the firm failed any law suits or requested arbitration with regard to construction 

contracts within the last ten years? 

 

 Within the last ten years, has any officer or principal of the firm ever been an officer 

or principal of another organization when it failed to complete a construction? 



 

 

 

6. References 

References listed in Criteria 2 above will be contacted to confirm your company’s 

record of conforming to contract requirements, schedules, cost control, forecasting, 

change orders, quality of workmanship, and reasonable behavior and commitment to 

customer satisfaction. 

 

7. Bonding  

A bonding requirement will be included in the proposal.  

 

8. Fee 

This section will require the contractor to provide a pricing for the work and it would 

be given a point value that will count against the scoring.  Generally it’s based on the 

low price will get 100% of the points and the next sequence of respondents will be 

scored with a ratio of the total points based against the reverse percentage against the 

low price.  Generally this section carries approximately 40% of the total possible points 

that the RFPs can receive.  

 

 

B. - Example of a Rating System 

 

Each category will be assigned points for rating.  The following is an example based on the 

foregoing how total points are assigned.   

 

Credentials: 

1. Contractor Firm Qualifications 10 points 

2. Past Performance/Relevant Project Experience 10 points 

3. Project Approach/Management Plan  20 points 

4. Safety Record  5 points 

5. Claims History  5 points 

6. References  5 points 

7. Bonding  5 points 

Cost: 

7. Cost  40 points 

Total Points Available 100 points 



 

 

 

The point structure can vary depending on how the importance is determined, total points do not 

need to be 100 but can be more.  Also a rating factor can be introduced to be a multiplier for each 

category that may weight on how well that category was narrated or detailed.   

Example: 1.0 Excellent, 0.8 Very Good, 0.6 Good, 0.4 Fair, 0.2 Poor.  The rating factor for each 

criteria category will be multiplied against the points available to determine the total points for 

that category. 

 

With regards to the cost, generally the lowest cost is awarded the full points, then the 2nd lowest 

is awarded a fraction of the points by dividing the lowest cost by that proposers cost and 

multiplying it by the maximum points allowed.  Then similarly so for the 3rd lowest bidder, etc. 

 



Submitted by:  Mayor Ward 

Passed and Approved:  June 19, 2016 

City of North Pole 
Resolution 17-13 Page 1 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 

RESOLUTION 17-13 2 

 3 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL DESIGNATING CITY OFFICIALS 4 

AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN ON CITY OF NORTH POLE ACCOUNTS  5 

 6 

WHEREAS, in order to carry out the financial responsibilities of city government the City Council must 7 

designate two or more city officials to sign and endorse checks, drafts or other orders on behalf of the 8 

City of North Pole; and 9 

 10 

WHEREAS, there is a change in personnel on the North Pole City Council and it is necessary for the 11 

City Council to designate city officials who will be authorized to sign and endorse checks, drafts or other 12 

orders on all City of North Pole accounts; and 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, it is prudent for the City to seek financial services that safeguard the financial resources of 15 

the City providing the highest level of service at the most affordable cost and best interest rates.  16 

 17 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following city officials are hereby designated and 18 

authorized to sign and endorse checks, drafts or other orders on behalf of the City of North Pole.  This 19 

authority will remain in effect until revoked in writing. 20 

 21 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the city officials listed below are authorized to receive information 22 

pertaining only to deposits, balances, items paid or items returned on City accounts.  This authority will 23 

remain in effect until revoked in writing. 24 

 25 

Bryce J. Ward      _______________________________ 26 

Santa Claus      _______________________________ 27 

Avery Thompson         _______________________________ 28 

Thomas R. McGhee     _______________________________ 29 

Douglas Isaacson     _______________________________ 30 

B. Kevin McCarthy     _______________________________ 31 

David Skipps      _______________________________ 32 

Judy L. Binkley     _______________________________ 33 

 34 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council of the City of North Pole, 35 

Alaska this 19th day of June, 2017. 36 

 37 

__________________________________ 38 

       BRYCE J. WARD, Mayor  39 

 40 

ATTEST: 41 

 42 

 43 

_______________________________ 44 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 45 

North Pole City Clerk 46 

PASSED 

Yes:  

No: 0 

Absent: 0 


	AG-06-19-17
	Min-06-05-17
	City of North Pole FS 12-31-16 Draft
	Ord 17-17 Amending Personnel Code 2.36.470 Pay -F Professional Development within the NPFD
	Request for Tuition Reimbursement for Emily Gibson
	Request to use RFP approach
	Res 17-13 Authorized Signers



